ESI Recording Manager Application

IP Server 900 & ESI Communications Servers User's Guide





About

ESI (Estech Systems, Inc.) is a privately held corporation based in Plano, Texas. Founded in 1987, ESI designs and builds innovative telecommunications products for businesses like yours. Because of their powerful combination of value and features, ESI products are consistently recognized by industry publications and leaders.

Support

Thank you for choosing ESI. For product updates and web support, visit http://support.esi-estech.com/

Estech Systems, Inc. (ESI)

3701 E. Plano Parkway, Ste. 100 Plano, TX 75074-1819 Phone: 800-374-0422 | Fax: 972 422-9705

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION	
FEATURES	3
Call Recording Logs	4
System Requirements	5
ESI System Requirements	5
PC Requirements	5
INSTALLATION PREPARATION	5
INSTALLATION	6
CONFIGURATION	
Accessing Settings	8
Entering License Info	9
Accessing ESI Phone System	
Archive/Purge Settings	
EMAIL SETTINGS	
ENCRYPTION SETTINGS	15
Screen Capture Settings	
Miscellaneous Settings	
Permissions Settings	
SEARCHING RECORDINGS	
Search Parameters	20
VIEWING SEARCH RESULTS	
Playing a Recording	23
Saving Search Results	
VIEWING ARCHIVE STATUS	
Current Archive Progress	27
Archive History	
INDEX	

Introduction

ESI Recording Manager is a hardware/software combination which provides audio monitoring directly through an IP Server 900 or ESI Communications Server. *ESI Recording Manager* is a PC application that is not only powerful, but easy to use. It may be used to quickly locate recordings from either a live ESI phone system equipped with automatic call recording (call logging) licensing and hardware, or from an archive location.

Features

ESI Recording Manager features the following capabilities:

- Lightning fast load time of the user interface.
- Extremely fast and responsive search engine
- Supports multiple remote sites /ASC cards
- Ability to search by date and/or time range, whole or partial Caller ID Name and/or Number, dialed number, call duration, extension number, department number, and/or line number.
- Indicator of how many calls meet the search criteria.
- Ability to save all audio files in search results to a folder as WAV files, along with an HTML index file to easily review call data.
- Support for playback of a user's PC screen recording while on a call (requires optional Screen Capture add-on, license separately).
- Visibility into the archiving process:
 - See what files are currently being downloaded and what date it is being worked on.
 - See how much drive space is free on each ASC card.
 - Archive logging allows user to see archive history by date and any errors encountered.
 - Resumption of archiving, if software was interrupted or disconnected from system.
 - Automatic retry of failed downloads.
 - Simultaneous connection to all ASC cards for archiving files.
 - Archiving does not interrupt user's ability to perform a search.
 - Search ASC cards, archives, or both effortlessly with a single search.
 - Archive size limited only by destination drive space.
 - Set number of days after which to archive and/or purge, separately.
 - Schedule archives to take place during (or outside of) a specific time range

Call Recording Logs

A compatible IP Server 900 or ESI Communications Server's call recording function — accessible via ESI Recording Manager — combines the advanced capabilities of your ESI business communications system and a powerful call recording, evaluation, and archiving solution that are designed to facilitate compliance, reduce risk, increase process efficiencies, and enhance customer service. Calls can be set to be recorded by extensions (digital, IP, and analog), departments, and CO lines (including analog, T1, or PRI, as well as SIP trunks). The audio is stored as .WAV files. If the system is recording only audio, the ASC's optional Storage Module (hard drive) can store up to 10,000 hours of audio and the external hard drive for the IP Server 900 can store up to 34,000 hours of audio.

This call recording function is available in the following options:

- Four-channels
- Eight-channels
- 32-channels

The IP Server 900 or ESI Communications Servers Supports a specific number of call recordings:

System	Maximum xall recording ports
IP Server 900	32
ESI-1000	384
ESI-600	192
ESI-200	64

System	Maximum xall recording ports
ESI-100	32
ESI-50	32
ESI-50L	32

System Requirements

In order to ensure a successful installation, please make sure your ESI System and PC meets the following requirements

ESI System Requirements

ESI Recording Manager is compatible with:

- ESI Communications Servers: (ESI-50, ESI-100, ESI-200, ESI-600, ESI-1000)
- IP Server 900
- **Call Processing software:** For IP Server 900, all releases; For ESI Communication Servers, versions xx.5.13.0 (or Higher)

In order to use ESI Recording Manager, systems must be equipped with

- Licensing: Automatic call recording (call logging)
- Hardware: For Communications Server you must have a ASC
- Hardware: For IP Server 900 you must have an external Hard Drive (HDD)

PC Requirements

The following are the minimum pc requirements in order to install and run ESI Recording Manager:

	Windows Operating Systems					РС На	rdware	
	Win 10 Pro	Win 8, 8.1 Pro	Win 7	Vista	Processor	Ram	Free HDD Space	LAN
ESI Recording Manager	Yes (64-bit)	Yes (64-bit)	Yes (32/64-bit)	Yes (32/64-bit)	Multi-core	1 GB	50 MB	YES

Note: The recommended minimal free HDD space for your PC's is 50 MB, if you're managing a large number of recordings and/or multiple sites more space will be required.

Installation Preparation

Before attempting to install ESI Recording Manager, perform the following steps:

- 1. Update your PC with all recommended Microsoft Windows updates. You can begin this process by going to www.microsoftupdate.com.
- 2. Ensure that you have Administrator privileges on the local PC where you will install the software.

Installation

As of this writing, the latest version of *ESI Recording Manager* can be obtained from the ESI Reseller website by authorized ESI resellers.

After extracting all the files in the installation archive to their own folder, double-click on the file "**Setup.exe**" to launch it.

Note: If any additional Microsoft components are missing that need to be present on your PC in order for *ESI Recording Manager* to run correctly, you will be prompted to install them. If prompt is presented, please allow those components to be installed.



Setup Screen	Ste	ps
ESI Recording Manager Setup Select Installation Folder This is the folder where ESI Recording Manager will be installed. To install in this folder, click "Next". To install to a different folder, enter it below or click "Browse". Eolder: C: 'Program Files (x86) \ESI Recording Manager \ Browse	5.	You may choose the default location and click the " Next " button.
Advanced Installer Cancel		
Installing ESI Recording Manager Installing ESI Recording Manager Please wait while the Setup Wizard installs ESI Recording Manager. This may take several minutes.	6.	On the following screen, click " Install " again to begin the installation:
Advanced Installer < Back Next > Cancel		
ESI Recording Manager Setup	7.	After a few moments, the installation will complete and you will see the following
Completing the ESI Recording Manager Setup Wizard	8.	screen: Click " Finish ". The installation is complete!
Click the "Finish" button to exit the Setup Wizard.		
< Back Finish Cancel	J	

Configuration

Accessing Settings

Upon launching ESI Recording Manager, you will see the following screen:

ch Recordings earch Paramet From Date:	Archive Status Settings	Number Search:	V	Incoming Calls	Reset Parameters
To Date: From Time: To Time:	05/16/16 • • • 12:00:00 AM • 11:59:59 PM •	Name Search: Extension Search: Dept. Search: Line Search: Length From: to	seconds	Internal Calls Transferred Calls No_Call_Record	Search ASC(s) Search Archive Search
oate & Time	Duration Direction	Name Number Ed.,	Line, Dept Notes File f	Name Location	

Click on the "Settings" tab at the top of the window, and you will be taken to the Settings tabs/sections:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)	
esi Recording Manager	NEED HELP ?
Search Recordings Archive Statut Settings	
License Connections Archive/Purge Email Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	
Serial Number: 1194604824	
Trial Version	
	Save Settings

Entering License Info

In order to gain unlimited access to the *ESI Recording Manager* software, you must enter a License Code in the Settings screen. License info is entered in this section of Settings:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)		
<i>esi</i> Recording Manager		NEED HELP ?
Search Recordings Archive Status Settings		
License Jonnections Archive/Purge Email	Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	
Serial Number: 1194604824		
License Code:		
		Save Settings
<u>.</u>		

The Serial Number varies by computer, and so will the License Code required for unlocking *ESI Recording Manager*. Please contact the ESI reseller from whom you purchased *ESI Recording Manager* in order to obtain the License Code, and then enter it into the License Code box in this screen. Once you have entered the correct License Code, the words "**Trial Version**" will change to "**Unlocked**" and you will have full, unrestricted use of the software's features.

Remember when your changes are complete, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Accessing ESI Phone System

In order to help you locate recordings, and take advantage of Recording Manager's archive capabilities, you must tell it how to access the ESI phone system on which the call recordings are stored. These settings are found in the "**Connections**" section of the Settings screen:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0	0)	
esi Recording Mar	nager	NEED HELP?
Search Recordings Archive Status	Settings	
License Connections rchive/F	Purge Email Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	
ASC User Name: mmuser		
ASC Password:	innert Passuard in phone autom programming (Comm. Convert Dist. ID Server 900-E 001)	
ASC Card IP Addresses:	Add	
		Save Settings
	Processing index file: logger.index (backup) [192.168.0.50]	4

In the "ASC User Name" box, enter "mmuser". Under the "ASC password" box, enter the password that has been set for your ESI phone system ASC card(s). If you do not know what this is, please contact your ESI reseller. (*Hint: this information can be found in Function 85 in the ESI phone system programming (Communications Servers) or Function 821 (IP Server 900).*)

Next, you must enter the IP address of the phone system ASC card. Your ESI reseller can also give you this information. (This will be located in **Function 85** in programming Communications Servers or **Function 821** of the IP Server 900). Click the "**Add**" button to add the IP address to the list. If your ESI phone system has more than one ASC card to store recording or if you would like to connect to a remote connection you can enter the other IP address(s) to the list as well.

When you enter the IP address by itself, *ESI Recording Manager* assumes you intend to connect to port 22 (the default). If you need to specify a port other than 22, you can designate it like so:

10.10.10.10:55022

Where **10.10.10.10** is the IP address and **55022** is the port number.

If you need to remove an IP address from the list, simply click on it to highlight it, and click on the "**Remove**" button.

Remember when you are finished changing settings in Settings, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Archive/Purge Settings

ESI Recording Manager includes the ability to archive and purge recordings from the ESI phone system. This section is located on the Settings screen as shown:

ESI Recording Mana	ger (2.0.5.0)						
esi Record	ing Manager						NEED HELP?
Search Recordings Arc	hive Status Setting			***	De.		
License Connection	Archive/Purge	mail	Encryption Screen Capture	Miscellaneous	Permissions		
Archive/Purg	e Data						
Backup (archive)	folder: D:\Backup	ASC	Recordings				
Archive data more	e than 0 d	days	old				
Purge data more t	than 9999 c	lays	old				
Archive/Purge	Schedule						
Sunday:	12:57:41 PM 🔲 🔻	to	12:57:41 PM				
Monday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM				
Tuesday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM				
Wednesday:	12:57:41 PM 🗐 🔻	to	12:57:41 PM				
Thursday:	12:57:41 PM 🔲 🖛	to	12:57:41 PM				
Friday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM				
Saturday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM				
C Archive d	luring these times	Do	NOT archive during these time	es			
							Sauce Sottingen
							Save settings
L							<u>I</u>

Once these settings are configured, archiving and purging happens automatically when *ESI Recording Manager* is running. When you launch the *ESI Recording Manager* software, you will not initially see any activity for a couple of minutes, due to a background check *ESI Recording Manager* will perform on the ASC card or external HDD before it can archive or purge.

The top section, "**Archive/Purge**", is where you tell the software whether you would like to archive recordings (in other words, save a copy of the recordings to another place such as a backup server) and/or purge recordings (in other words, permanently erase recordings from the ESI phone system).

Please be careful when modifying these settings! Purging data is irreversible and can lead to data loss if the recordings are not backed up!

You are not required to archive or purge recordings. If you do not wish to do so, you may simply leave the "**Archive/Purge Data**" check box unchecked.

If you do wish to archive and/or purge recordings, begin by checking the "Archive/Purge Data" check box, as shown in the screen below:

Archive/Purge	>		
Backup (archive) folder: D:\Backup\ASC Record	dings		
Archive data more than	0	days old	
Purge data more than	9999	days old	

Then, specify where you would like archived (backed up) recordings to be stored:

Archive/Purge				
🚺 Archive/Purge Data				
Backup (archive) folder:				18
D:\Backup\ASC Record	dings		Use this button to	help
Archive data more than	0	days old	you search for	the }
Purge data more than	9999	days old	archive recordi	ngs

Finally, specify how many days after which you would like to archive and purge the recordings. In the example above, we are intending to archive data more than 0 days old, meaning everything before the current date. We are specifying to purge data more than 9999 days old, which effectively means, "never purge".

It is important that the number you enter under archiving be LESS THAN what you enter under purging; otherwise, you will purge data before archiving it and the data will be lost forever!

Archiving of recordings is very light on network resources; however, if you would like to specify specific times during which to archive, you may do so via the section "**Archive/Purge Schedule**":

Sunday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM
Monday:	12:57:41 PM 🗐 🔻	to	12:57:41 PM
Tuesday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM
Wednesday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM
Thursday:	12:57:41 PM 🔲 💌	to	12:57: <mark>4</mark> 1 PM 🗐 🔻
Friday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM
Saturday:	12:57:41 PM	to	12:57:41 PM 🗐 👻

In the example above, we have specified the same start time and end time for all days for archiving. Because we have selected the "**Do NOT archive during these times**" radio button, this essentially means that the *ESI Recording Manager* software can archive at all times the software is running.

Again, archiving and purging happen automatically when *ESI Recording Manager* is running according to the settings you have specified; when you launch the *ESI Recording Manager* software, you will not initially see any activity for a couple of minutes, as *ESI Recording Manager* needs to do some background work before it can archive or purge.

Remember when your changes are complete, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Email Settings

For your convenience, *ESI Recording Manager* includes the ability to email audio recordings directly from within *ESI Recording Manager* (this is available as a right-click option for any audio recordings found in the Search Recordings section). In order for this to work, the Email Settings section needs to be filled in:

🖽 ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)		
esi Recording Man	ager	NEED HELP?
Search Recordings Archive Status	Settings Inge Email Bincryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	
SMTP Server Settings		
SMTP Server Address:	smtp.example.com	
SMTP Port:	25	
User Name:	myuser@example.com	
Password:		
"From" Email Address:	myuser@example.com	
Test Email		
Send test email to:	Test	
		Save Settings

These settings are generally the same as the data entered in the client program which you use to check your email. If you are unsure what these settings are, ask an IT administrator for assistance.

Remember when your changes are complete, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Encryption Settings

ESI Recording Manager includes the ability to optionally encrypt archived index and audio files. These settings can be found in the Encryption Settings section:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)
esi Recording Manager
Search Recordings Archive Status Settings
License Connections Archive/Purge Email Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions
WARNING: use encryption with caution! If the password is lost or forgotten, recordings and index files will be inaccessible and unrecoverable!
If you have more than one copy of this software, ensure that only ONE of them is set to archive and encrypt files.
Automatically downloaded or created index files, audio files, and informational databases on this PC are NOT encrypted, regardless of settings. Ensure that access to this PC is restricted.
Automatically encrypt archived index and audio files with a password Add/Change Password
Enable right-click option in search results, "Save File As Encrypted" and "Save All Files As Encrypted"
Save Settings

Because the encryption of files adds a layer of complexity, and can be subject to human error (for example, the password is lost or forgotten), it is recommended in most cases that this option NOT be selected.

Even if you choose not to encrypt archived files, you may still find useful the ability to save a specific audio file or files in search results as encrypted. When the option "Enable right-click" option in search results, 'Save File As Encrypted...' and 'Save All Files As Encrypted' is checked, there will be an additional option available to you to save individual search results on demand in a .ZIP file with a password of your choosing.

Remember when your changes are complete, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Screen Capture Settings

In addition to automatically recording audio conversations of selected ESI phone system users, with *ESI Recording Manager* you have the ability to "**record**" the PC screen activity of the extension users. Screen Capture is an optional add-on to Call Logging, and is licensed separately. In Recording Manager, the location of screen capture files (generally a shared network drive) is specified in the Screen Capture Settings section:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)	
esi Recording Manager	NEED HELP?
Search Recordings Archive Status Settings	
License Connections Archive/Purge Email Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	
Screen capture file path: Y:\Goldmine\scesi	
	Save Settings

Remember when your changes are complete, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Miscellaneous Settings

The Miscellaneous section in the Settings screen is found here:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)	
esi Recording Manager	NEED HELP?
Search Recordings Archive Status Settings	
License Connections Archive/Purge Email Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	
Keep call data current to within 10 minutes	
Launch CSV file after saving it	
Media Manager Archive Converter	
If you have archived recordings in ESI Media Manager and would like to convert the archives for use with this software, you may launch this utility.	
Launch Media Manager Archive Converter	
	Save Settings

In the *ESI Recording Manager* software, call recording information is retrieved periodically for the current day so that we may preserve network and phone system resources. By default, *ESI Recording Manager* updates the current day's data every 10 minutes. If you would like to specify a different interval, you may do that here.

When you perform a search in the "**Search Recordings**" screen of *ESI Recording Manager*, you have the option of saving the results as a comma-delimited (CSV) file, which can be imported into other programs such as Microsoft Excel. If you would like for *ESI Recording Manager*, after saving a CSV file, to automatically launch it in whatever program on your PC is registered to handle CSV files, you should check the check box "Launch CSV file after saving it".

Remember when your changes are complete, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lower-right of the Settings screen.

Permissions Settings

If your organization is using multiple copies of Recording Manager, you may not want all users to have access to recordings for all personnel. In this case, permissions can be set for each PC and user login. The Permissions Settings section is as follows:

ESI Recording Manager (2.0.5.0)		
CS1 Recording Manag	ier	NEED HELP ?
Search Recordings Archive Status	ettings	N
License Connections Archive/Purg	e Email Encryption Screen Capture Miscellaneous Permissions	2
Add Permissions		Notes this DC // a six Name to:
PC & User Name:	Example: MYPC\MyLoginName	Admin2016\LarryW
Permissions:	Extension and/or department ranges, for example: 100-105 107 108 112 280 282	DO NOT FORGET TO ADD PERMISSIONS
Males Admin (allassakis sam		FOR YOUR OWN PC/LOGIN NAME!
	r to change permissions for all users, as well as archive)	At least one PC/User must be set as Admin
Add To Permissions List		
Current Permissions		
	NDD to use Adjust	
ADMINZUISILARRITW: TUU-55	is an Admin	Remove Selected
A		4
		Save Settings

Please note that, as reflected in the example above, the first installation of *ESI Recording Manager* at a site will automatically allocate the logged-in user privileges to search for recordings for all personnel. If this is what is desired, nothing needs to be changed in this section. If permissions need to be modified for this user, you may click on the entry in the Permissions box, which will populate the fields automatically in the Add Permissions box above, as seen below:

PC & User Name:	ADMIN2016\LARRYW	Example: MYPC\MyLoginName
Permissions:	100-9999	Extension and/or department ranges, for example
		100-105, 107, 108, 112, 280, 282
💟 Make Admin (;	allow this user to change per	100-105, 107, 108, 112, 280, 282

You may simply modify the permissions as desired and click the Add To Permissions List button, and the permissions for that user will be updated.

Note that, with the second and subsequent installations of *ESI Recording Manager* at the site, users will discover that they are unable to search recordings for any personnel by default, and any searches they perform will return no results. **This is by design.** The user at the initial installation will need to add permissions for the other PCs/users. If desired, this user may designate another user or users as an Admin, which will allow those users in turn to set permissions for other users.

Remember when you are finished changing settings, click on the "**Save Settings**" button in the lowerright of the Settings screen.

Searching Recordings

ESI Recording Manager is a powerful, multi-threaded application designed to search your ESI phone system's automatic (call logging) recordings quickly. These topics will allow you to get the most out of your searches.

Search Parameters

When you run ESI Recording Manager, the "Search Recordings" screen is the default screen you see:

ESI Recording N	/lanager (2.0.5.	0)							
esi Rec	ording Ma	nager							NEED HELP?
earch Recordings Search Paramete From Date: To Date: From Time: To Time:	Archive Status ers 05/16/16 05/16/16 12:00:00 AN 11:59:59 PN	Settings	Number S Name Sea Extension Dept. Sea Line Sear	Search:			 ✓ Incomin ✓ Outgoin ✓ Internal ✓ Transfer ✓ No_Call 	g Calls g Calls Calls rred Calls _Record	Reset Parameters Search ASC(s) Search Archive
Date & Time	Duration	Direction	Name	Number	Ext, Line, Dep	t Notes	File Name	Location	
Save Results	As CSV	n 4							

You may enter as many or as few parameters as you like in order to view the recordings you are looking for. By default, when you click the "**Search**" button, all calls for the current date will be displayed. Following are a list of parameters that may be changed to narrow or expand your search:

From Date:	3/31/2013 🗐 🔻	3 Number Search:			📝 Incoming Calls
To Date:	3/31/2013 🗐 🔻	A Name Search:			V Outgoing Calls
From Time:	12:00:00 AM	5 Extension Search:			Internal Calls
To Time:	11:59:59 PM 🚖	6 Dept. Search:			Iransterred Calls
2		Z Line Search:			
Force Data	abase Refresh	8 Length From:	to	seconds	

- You may specify a date range over which to search by changing the "From Date" and "To Date" parameters. Similarly, you may limit the time of the calls to those you specify in the "From Time" and "To Time" parameters.
- 2. You should rarely, if ever, need to check the "Force Database Refresh" box. If you are searching for calls for the current date and want to make sure that your results are up-to-the-minute, you may check this box. This option will force *ESI Recording Manager* to re-download the call recording data for the date(s) in your search; if you have several or many dates you're searching, it could take some time do re-download all of the call information.
- 3. Number Search: you may specify a full or partial phone number to search here. On inbound calls, the Caller ID Number is searched. On outbound calls, the number dialed is searched. The format of the phone number you enter (for example, whether you use parentheses or dashes) does not matter.
- 4. Name Search: you may enter a full or partial name to search on. For inbound calls, this will be matched against Caller ID Name. For internal (intercom) calls, this will be matched against the station (extension) name.
- 5. Extension Search: You may optionally enter an extension number here, and only calls that involved that extension will be returned in the search results.
- 6. Dept. Search: This will match any inbound calls to the specified department number, as specified in the ESI phone system programming.
- 7. Line Search: You may put a specific line (CO) number here to match against.
- 8. Length: If you are looking for calls matching a certain duration, enter the minimum number and maximum number of seconds here.
- Call type: By checking the appropriate boxes, you may include Incoming Calls, Outgoing Calls, Internal (intercom) Calls, Transferred Calls, or No_Call_Record calls. No_Call_Record calls are ones in which there is no call record present (this would be rare if you ever encounter it at all).

In addition to the above parameters, there is one additional option that you may specify; this parameter is located to the right of the other parameters, just above the "**Search**" button:



You must specify to *ESI Recording Manager* whether you wish to search: in the recordings stored in the ESI phone system, through the archives, or both simultaneously. In order to search through the archives, you must have specified the archive (backup) location in the "**Settings**" -> "**Archive/Purge Settings**" tab.

If you wish to reset the parameters to default and start over, click on the "Reset Parameters" button.

Viewing Search Results

Once you have performed a search (see the previous topic, "Search Parameters" to narrow or expand your search results), you will see a screen similar to the following:

ve Status Sett	tings							
/11/16	1 4	Number Search:		Incomir	ng Calls	Reset		
/11/16		Name Search	1	Vutgoir	ng Calls	Parameters		
		Eduction County		V Interna	al Calls	_		
:00:00 AM 🔶	-	Extension Search:		Transfe	erred Calls	Search ASC(s)		
:59:59 PM 😫	9	Dept. Search:		No Ca	Becord	Search Archive		
		Line Search:			II_IICCOIU			
Refresh								
		Length From:	to	seconds		Search		
		Length From:	to	seconds		Search		
Duration	Direction	Length From: Name	to Number	seconds Ext, Line, Dept	Notes	File Name	Location	-
Duration I 17:23 0	Direction Outgoing	Length From: Name	to Number (513) 4	Ext, Line, Dept EXT, 106, CO 012	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41.wav	Location 192.168.0.50	111 ×
Duration I 07:23 0 11:44 0	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5	Ext. Line, Dept Ext. 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012	Notes	File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	m N
Duration I 17:23 O 11:44 O 10:14 Ir	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2	Ext, Line, Dept Ext 106, C0 012 EXT 106, C0 012 EXT 106, C0 012 EXT 103, C0 005	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	×
Duration I 07:23 0 11:44 0 00:14 Ir 01:04 Ir	Direction Outgoing Outgoing ncoming ncoming	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3	Ext, Line, Dept EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005	Notes	File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_46_8.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	×
Duration I 07:23 O 11:44 O 00:14 Ir 01:04 Ir 07:33 O	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming ncoming Dutgoing	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3	Ext. Line. Dept Ext. 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_46_8.wav 105_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	, m
Duration I 17723 0 11:44 0 00:14 Ir 01:04 Ir 17:33 0 13:21 0	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming ncoming Dutgoing Dutgoing	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3 (480) 2	Ext, Line, Dept Ext 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 107, CO 012	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 105_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 117_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	
Duration L D7/23 O 11:44 O 00:14 Ir D1:04 Ir 07:33 O 03:21 O 00:11 Ir	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming ncoming Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3 (623) 3 (480) 2 (480) 4	Ext. Line. Dept Ext. 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 117, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 105_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 117_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav 5_5_11_2016_9_1_11.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	× III
Duration I D7:23 C 11:44 O 00:14 Ir D1:04 Ir 07:33 O 03:21 O 00:11 Ir 00:21 O	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming ncoming Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing	Name	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3 (480) 2 (480) 4 528-30	seconds Ext, Line, Dept EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 117, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 117, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 117, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 009	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_1_30.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	× III
Duration I 17:23 O 11:44 O 00:14 Ir 01:04 Ir 07:33 O 03:21 O 00:11 Ir 00:12 O 00:13 Ir 01:57 Ir	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing ncoming	Name Name WireLESS CALLER	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3 (480) 2 (480) 4 528-30 (602) 3	seconds Ext, Line, Dept EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 117, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 107, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 009 EXT 103, CO 006	Notes	Search 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_44.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav 5_5_11_2016_9_1_30.wav 6_5_11_2016_9_1_53.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	
Duration I 17:23 C 11:44 O 00:14 Ir 01:04 Ir 07:33 O 03:21 O 00:11 Ir 00:11 Ir 01:57 Ir 03:51 O	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing	Name Name Wireless Caller	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3 (480) 2 (480) 4 528-30 (602) 3 (602) 3	seconds Ext, Line, Dept EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 117, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 009 EXT 103, CO 006 EXT 105, CO 009	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_42_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav 5_5_11_2016_9_1_41.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_1_30.wav 6_5_11_2016_9_1_30.wav 6_5_11_2016_9_1_253.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	
Duration I 17:23 0 11:44 0 00:14 Ir 01:04 Ir 01:03:21 0 00:11 Ir 00:13 0 00:14 0 01:04 Ir 00:15 Ir 01:57 Ir 03:51 0 02:16 Ir	Direction Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing Dutgoing Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing ncoming Dutgoing ntemal	Name Name WireLESS CALLER	to Number (513) 4 (502) 5 (410) 2 (480) 3 (623) 3 (480) 2 (480) 4 528-30 (602) 3 (602) 3 117	seconds Ext, Line, Dept EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 106, CO 012 EXT 103, CO 005 EXT 105, CO 008 EXT 105, CO 0012 EXT 105, CO 0012 EXT 105, CO 0012 EXT 105, CO 0012 EXT 103, CO 0012 EXT 105, CO 0012 EXT 105, CO 0012 EXT 105, CO 0013 EXT 105, CO 0014 EXT 105, CO 0015 EXT 105, CO 0015	Notes	Search File Name 106_5_11_2016_7_29_41 wav 106_5_11_2016_7_37_16.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_22_39.wav 5_5_11_2016_8_49_50.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_0_41.wav 5_5_11_2016_9_1_30.wav 6_5_11_2016_9_1_30.wav 6_5_11_2016_9_1_53.wav 105_5_11_2016_9_1_53.wav	Location 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50 192.168.0.50	
	11/16	11/16 ▼ 11/16 ▼ 00:00 AM 🔶 59:59 PM 🔄	11/16 ♥ Number Search: 11/16 ♥ Name Search: 00:00 AM ♀ Extension Search: 59:59 PM ♀ Dept. Search: Line Search:	11/16 ▼ Number Search: 11/16 ▼ Name Search: 00:00 AM ← Extension Search: 59:59 PM ← Dept. Search: Line Search: □	11/16 ▼ Number Search: ✓ Incomi 11/16 ▼ Name Search: ✓ Outgoi 00:00 AM ← Extension Search: ✓ International Search: 00:00 AM ← Dept. Search: ✓ Transf 59:59 PM ← Dept. Search: ✓ No_Ca Line Search: ✓ No_Ca ✓	11/16 ▼ Number Search: ✓ Incoming Calls 11/16 ▼ Name Search: ✓ Outgoing Calls 11/16 ▼ Name Search: ✓ Internal Calls 00:00 AM ← Extension Search: ✓ Internal Calls 59:59 PM ← Dept. Search: ✓ Vno_Call_Record Line Search: ✓ No_Call_Record ✓	11/16 ▼ Number Search: ✓ Incoming Calls Parameters 11/16 ▼ Name Search: ✓ Outgoing Calls Parameters 00:00 AM ← Extension Search: ✓ Internal Calls ✓ Search ASC(s) 59:59 PM ← Dept. Search: ✓ No_Call_Record ✓ Search Archive	11/16 ▼ Number Search: ✓ Incoming Calls Parameters 11/16 ▼ Name Search: ✓ Outgoing Calls Parameters 00:00 AM Extension Search: ✓ Internal Calls ✓ Search ASC(s) 59:59 PM Dept. Search: ✓ No_Call_Record ✓ Search Archive

At the very bottom of this screen, you will see the words, "**Search Complete. Matches found:**" and the number of call recordings that matched your search criteria. Details on each recording will be presented to you in a tabular format, with the following information:

Field	Function(s)
Date & Time:	The date and time when the call began.
Duration:	This is presented in HH:MM:SS format; for example, 01:03:27 would be a call lasting
	one hour, three minutes, and 27 seconds.
Direction:	This will be: Incoming; Outgoing; Internal; Transfer; or No_Call_Record.
Name:	In the case of an inbound call, this is the Caller ID Name; in case of an internal
	(intercom) call, this is the name of the station (extension) initiating the call.
Number:	On an outbound call, this is the number dialed. On an inbound call, this is the Caller
	ID Number. On an internal (intercom) call, this is the number of the extension
	initiating the call.
Ext, Line, Dept:	These are all the extensions, lines, and/or departments involved in the call.
Notes:	If the call is a conference call, that will be indicated here. If the recording is a result of
	the ESI phone user pressing the Record button on His/Her phone, that will also be
	indicated here. Finally, if there is no recording available because the ESI phone user
	pressed His/Her Privacy ("PVY") button while on the call, this column will indicate
	such.
File Name:	This is the file name of the audio recording as stored in the ESI phone system or in the
	archive (backup) location.
Location:	If this is an IP address, it indicates the ASC card on the ESI phone system upon which
	the recording is located (helpful for those installations that have multiple call
	recording cards). If this is listed as an IP address followed by "(backup)", this indicates
	that the recording is located in the archive (backup) location.

Playing a Recording

Once you have performed a search and received search results, you can play back a particular recording by either (a) double-clicking on the row that represents the recording, or (b) right-clicking on the row, and left-clicking on "**Play Audio File**".

Either of these options will cause the recording to be downloaded from the appropriate location and played in the PC's default program for playing WAV audio files.

Note: If the Screen Capture add-on has been licensed and configured, there will be an additional option when you right-click, "Screen Capture Playback". Choosing this option will, if screen capture information exist for this call, download the screen capture information and combine it with the audio for playback as a "movie".

Saving Search Results

There are three ways to save the results of a search you have performed:

METHOD 1: You can save an individual audio file by right-clicking on the search results row representing the recording you wish to save, and then clicking on "**Save File As...**". When you do this, a dialog box will appear asking you to choose a save location and to confirm the file name.

Note that, if you have installed and configured the Screen Capture add-on for one or more users, there will be two additional options in the right-click menu: "Screen Capture Save..." (using this option requires that a special, free player for playback be installed); and "Screen Capture Save As WMV..." (or Windows Media Video, a common format which plays on most Windows PCs natively).

METHOD 2: You may save all audio files in your search results by right-clicking on any of the search result rows and then clicking on "**Save All Files...**". You will see a dialog box similar to the following, which confirms that you would like to download all the files in the search results:



The dialog box will indicate whatever number of files are actually in your particular search results. This can take a significant amount of time to download these files, especially if there are a lot of them. When you confirm that you would like to save all the files, you will see a dialog box similar to the following asking where you would like to save the files:

created called "Audio Recordin date and time)	gs Saved" plus the cur	rent
E Desktop		-
Libraries		=
Stephen SDW.		
🖻 🜉 Computer		
🖻 📬 Network		
Control Panel		
🗑 Recycle Bin		
🖻 퉲 Attach		
🔰 Bulwark Amanda		
D 🔐 CP VIP		-
< [

Note: that all the audio files will be saved to a sub folder, which will automatically be created for you, called "Audio Recordings Saved" along with the current date and time. This is so that you do not accidentally litter a folder with a bunch of recordings (like the Desktop).

Your files will then download and be saved. There will also be a file in the created folder called "**index.htm**". You can double-click on this file, which will bring up the details of each recording (the same details present in your search results). You can click on any recording, and, as long as your default Internet browser is configured to recognize and play WAV audio files, the recording will launch in the browser window itself or in a separate program.

A benefit of saving recordings this way is that you can then send the folder to someone who does not have a copy of ESI Recording Manager, and they will still be able to make sense of, and play, the recordings.

METHOD 3: At the bottom of the Search Recordings screen is a button labeled "**Save Results as CSV...".** When you click on this, a dialog box will appear asking if you want to save to a CSV (comma-delimited) file. A CSV file can be opened in different programs designed to handle it, such as Microsoft Excel. If you have specified on the "**Settings**" screen that you would like to launch CSV files when saved, the CSV file will then be opened in your PC's default program set to handle CSV files.

Note that when you save a CSV file, you are saving the call recording details only, not the recordings themselves. If you wish to save the recordings along with the call recording details, you should choose method 2 in this section.

Viewing Archive Status

With ESI Recording Manager, you can optionally archive (back up), to a location of your choice, recordings stored on your ESI phone system. To configure these settings, refer to the topic, <u>Archive/Purge Settings</u>. Once these settings are configured, archives and purges will automatically take place as needed when you run ESI Recording Manager.

You may view the progress of current archiving operations, or view archiving history, by selecting the "**Archive Status**" tab at the top of the screen, like so:

	Archive Status	Settings					
rrent Archive rchive drive sp	bace free (MB): 1	37571					
ASC Card	Space Free	Archive Date	% Complete	Current Status	Time	Last Error	Time
192.168.0.50	182GB (65%)	9/16/2015	11% (10/87)	Downloaded 7_9_16_2015_8_29_7.wav	05/14/16 6:04:35 PM		
2016_05_13 2016_05_12 2016_05_11	(05) [05] [05]	/14/16 3:09:05 PM] /14/16 3:09:05 PM] /14/16 3:09:05 PM]	Backup 192.168. Backup 192.168. Backup 192.168.	0.50 (6)> Begun or resumed backup for date 5 0.50 (6)> 85 calls to be downloaded from ASC 0.50 (6)> Archive attempt 1 (for this session) of	3		

Current Archive Progress

The top section of the "**Archive Status**" screen shows current archive progress and looks similar to the following:

ASC Card	Space Free	Archive Date	% Complete	Current Status	Time	Last Error	Time
192.168.0.50	182GB (65%)	8/24/2015	53% (46/87)	Downloaded 105_8_24_2015_12_35_37.wav	05/14/16 4:01:47 PM		

The "**Archive drive space free**" monitors how much space is currently available on the drive to which you are backing up. Below this, there is a table indicating any archiving in progress. If your ESI phone system has more than one ASC (call recording) card, each of them will be listed here. The columnar information is as follows:

Field	Function(s)
ASC Card:	The IP address that has been assigned to this ASC card.
Space Free:	The amount of space, in Gigabytes (GB) and as a percentage, on the ASC card.
Archive Date:	The current date being archived.
% Complete:	How far along the archiving has progressed for this particular date. In parentheses, the first number is how many recordings have been backed up for this date, and the second number is the total number of recordings for that date that need to be backed up.
Current Status:	The operation being worked on (generally indicating the recording file that has most recently been archived).
Time:	The time that the operation under "Current Status" was completed.
Last Error:	If any errors have been encountered, the most recent error.
Time:	The time at which the last error was encountered.

Archive History

The bottom section of the Archive Status screen shows a log of archiving history, and looks similar to the following:

2016_05_13	*	[05/14/16 3:13:05 PM] Backup 192.168.0.50 (6)> Begun or resumed backup for date 5/13/2016
6_05_12		[05/14/16 3:13:05 PM] Backup 192.168.0.50 (6)> 140 calls to be downloaded from ASC
16_05_11	1	[05/14/16 3:13:05 PM] Backup 192.168.0.50 (6)> Archive attempt 1 (for this session) of 3
16_05_10		[05/14/16 3:16:56 PM] Backup 192.168.0.50 (6)> Finished archiving date 5/13/2016
016_05_09		
2016_05_08		
016_05_06		
016_05_05		
2016_05_04		
2016_05_03		
2016_05_02		
2016_05_01		
2016_04_30		
2016_04_29		
2016_04_28	*	1

On the left-hand side of this section, all dates are listed for which an archive was attempted or completed. By clicking on a particular date, you can see the history for archive attempts for that date.

Index

Archive Status, 26, 27, 28 Archive/Purge, 11, 12, 13 Call Logging, 3, 5, 16 Configuration, 8 Date & Time, 23 Direction, 23 Duration, 23 Email, 14 Encryption, 15 Features, 3 File name,23, 24 License, 3, 9, 16, 23 Notes, 23 Number, 3, 4, 10, 12, 21, 23, 24, 27 PC Requirements, 5 Permissions, 18, 19 Play Audio File, 23 Saving Search Results, 24 Screen Capture, 3, 16, 23, 24 Search Recordings, 14, 17, 20, 25 Search Results, 22 Serial Number, 9 System Requirements, 5